
 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at the 

meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the public 
except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter during a 

public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them 

to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required to contact the 
ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable 

accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 1 of 2 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Agenda 

Tuesday, March 16, 2021 ◊ 6:30 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 

2. Approval of Agenda 

3. Invocation - Pastor James Smith 

4. Pledge of Allegiance (BW) 

 

Zoning Public Hearing 
5. Request by Carrie Louvonn Benjamin Kimble to rezone 5.00 acres from AG to R-1 on 

Glenwood Springs Road [Map 033, Parcel 029, District 1] (staff-P&D) 

6. Request by Colia Farley to rezone 4.12 acres from AG to R-2 at 672 Gray Road [Map 052, 

Parcel 024001, District 1] (staff-P&D) 

7. Request by Steve Parkes and Lorrie Anne Parkes, agent for Ana Castillo and Kristofer J. 

Shepard, to rezone 56.31 acres from RM-3 to AG on Harmony Road [Map 098, Parcel 029, 

District 3] (staff-P&D) 

8. Request by North Georgia Marine LLC, agent for June B. Smith, to rezone 1.1 acres from C-1 

to C-2 at 808 Harmony Road [Map 097, Parcel 066, District 3] (staff-P&D) 

9. Request by North Georgia Marine LLC, agent for Jerry O. Smith, to rezone 1.78 acres from C-1 

to C-2 at 804 Harmony Road [Map 097, Parcel 067, District 3] (staff-P&D) 

10. Request by North Georgia Marine LLC, agent for Jerry O. Smith, to rezone 1 acre from C-1 to 

C-2 at 804 Harmony Road [Map 097, Parcel 068, District 3] (staff-P&D) 

 

Regular Business Meeting 
11. Public Comments 

12. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - March 5, 2021 Regular Meeting (staff-CC) 

b. Approval of Minutes - March 5, 2021 Executive Session (staff-CC) 

c. Approval of 2021 Alcohol Licenses (staff-CC) 

13. Discussion and possible action regarding Drug Court Coordinators (BW) 

14. Discussion and possible action on Anchors Marina Release and Settlement Agreement (BW) 

15. Request by James H. Jenkins, Jr. for Road Acceptance of Greenway Drive (staff-CC-P&D-PW) 

16. Approval of Right-of-Way Permit Applications from Ficoa Communications for work on 

Harmony Road, Scott Road, and Scott Oak Road (staff-CC) 

17. Authorization for Chairman to sign Technical Assistance Letter to the Middle Georgia Regional 

Commission regarding Redistricting (staff-CM) 

1



 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at the 

meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the public 
except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter during a 

public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them 

to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required to contact the 
ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable 

accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 2 of 2 

18. Authorization for Chairman to sign Technical Assistance Letter to the Middle Georgia Regional 

Commission regarding a Flow Chart Update for Commercial Development (staff-CM) 

19. Appointment to the Central Georgia Joint Development Authority (staff-CC) 

20. Appointment to the Putnam Development Authority (staff-CC) 

21. Appointments to the Board of Assessors (staff-CC) 

22. Recommendations for Appointment to the Hospital Authority - Post 7 (staff-CC) 

23. Discussion and possible action regarding TSPLOST and authorization for County Manager to 

move ahead with a schedule (BW) 

 

Reports/Announcements 
24. County Manager Report 

25. County Attorney Report 

26. Commissioner Announcements 

 

Executive Session 
27. Enter Executive Session as allowed by O.C.G.A. 50-14-4 for Personnel, Litigation, or Real 

Estate 

28. Reopen meeting and execute Affidavit concerning the subject matter of the closed portion of the 

meeting 

29. Action, if any, resulting from the Executive Session 

 

Closing 
30. Adjournment 

2



File Attachments for Item:

5. Request by Carrie Louvonn Benjamin Kimble to rezone 5.00 acres from AG to R-1 on Glenwood 

Springs Road [Map 033, Parcel 029, District 1] (staff-P&D)

3



Request by Carrie Louvonn Benjamin Kimble to rezone 5.00 acres from AG to R-1 on Glenwood Springs 
Road [Map 033, Parcel 029, District 1].  

 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT-LISA JACKSON STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 
The applicant is requesting to rezone her 5.00-acre lot from AG to R-1. She plans to split the lot and sell off 2 acres 
of land and keep the remaining 3 acres. The 2 acres sold will be used for a single-family home. The proposed use is 

consistent with the allowed uses, as listed in section Sec. 66-81. - Uses allowed of the R-1 zoning district. Although 
the Future Land Use Concept Plan shows this property as parks/recreations/conservation, the subject property is 

adjacent to multiple AG lots that are currently being used as residential. It is also close to multiple R-1R lots. This 
rezoning will not adversely impact the use of public facilities or services. Additionally, the proposed use will not 
adversely the existing use value or useability of adjacent or nearby properties.  

  

4

https://library.municode.com/ga/putnam_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH66ZO_SIMIREDI_S66-81USAL


   

5



 
 

6



Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 5 acres from AG to R-1 on Glenwood Springs Road [Map 
033, Parcel 029] with the following condition: 1.) This rezoning shall be conditioned upon the 

resurveying and recordation of the plat as stated in Section 66-165 (e)(3) of Putnam County Code of 
Ordinances. 

 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 

 
The Planning & Zoning Commission’s recommendation is for approval rezone 5 acres from AG to R-1 on Glenwood 

Springs Road [Map 033, Parcel 029] with the following condition:  
1.) This rezoning shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and recordation of the plat as stated in Section 66-165 
(e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 

 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES: 
 
The Putnam County Planning & Zoning Commission conducted a public hearing on Thursday, March 4, 2021, at 6:30 

P.M. in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia. 
 

PRESENT:  
Chairman James Marshall, Jr. 

Vice-Chairman Tim Pierson 
Member Maurice Hill, Jr. 
Member Martha Farley 

Member John Mitchell  
 

STAFF: 
Ms. Lisa Jackson 
Ms. Courtney Andrews 

Mr. Ben Schmitt 
 

Request by Carrie Louvonn Benjamin Kimble to rezone 5.00 acres from AG to R-1 on Glenwood Springs Road. [Map 
033, Parcel 029, District 1]. * Ms. Kimble represented this request. She seeks to rezone the property to subdivide it. 
After subdivided, a 2-acre parcel would be sold to a family; to build a single-family home on the lot. The other 3-

7



acres would remain in her possession; the 3-acre parcel would remain forested for the foreseeable future. A 
surveyor would be hired to map the parcels so both have road access. No one spoke in opposition to this request. 

 
Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 5 acres from AG to R-1 on Glenwood Springs Road [Map 033, Parcel 

029] with the following condition: 1.) This rezoning shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and recordation of the 
plat as stated in Section 66-165 (e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 
 

Motion to approve the request by Carrie Louvonn Benjamin Kimble to rezone 5.00 acres from AG to R-1 
on Glenwood Springs Road. [Map 033, Parcel 029, District 1] made by Member Hill and seconded by 

Member Farley. 
Voting Yea: Chairman Marshall, Vice-Chairman Pierson, Member Farley, Member Hill, and Member 
Mitchell. 

 
 

8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



File Attachments for Item:

6. Request by Colia Farley to rezone 4.12 acres from AG to R-2 at 672 Gray Road [Map 052, Parcel 

024001, District 1] (staff-P&D)

22



Request by Colia Farley to rezone 4.12 acres from AG to R-2 at 672 Gray Road [Map 052, Parcel 024001, 
District 1].  

 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT-LISA JACKSON STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 
The applicant is requesting to rezone his 4.12-acre lot from AG to R-2. He currently has a manufactured home on 
the 4.12 acres. Mr. Farley plans to subdivide the lot and place a manufactured home on the vacant portion. The 

proposed property will be subdivided into two sperate lots. The current manufactured home will be on the 1-acre lot 
and the remaining 3.12 acres will host the new manufactured home. The proposed use is consistent with the 

allowed uses, as listed in section Sec. 66-84. - Uses allowed of the R-2 zoning district. Although the Future Land 
Use Concept Plan shows this property as parks/recreations/conservation, the subject property is adjacent to 
multiple AG lots that are currently being used a residential. This rezoning will not adversely impact the use of public 

facilities or services. Additionally, the proposed use will not adversely the existing use value or useability of adjacent 
or nearby properties. 

 
Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 4.12 acres from AG to R-2 at 672 Gray Road [Map 052, 
Parcel 024001] with the following condition: 1.) This rezoning shall be conditioned upon the 

resurveying and recordation of the plat as stated in Section 66-165 (e)(3) of Putnam County Code of 
Ordinances. 

  

23

https://library.municode.com/ga/putnam_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH66ZO_SIMIREDI_S66-84USAL


  

24



 
 

25



PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
 

The Planning & Zoning Commission’s recommendation is for approval to rezone 4.12 acres from AG to R-2 at 672 
Gray Road [Map 052, Parcel 024001] with the following condition: 

 1.) This rezoning shall be conditional upon the resurveying and recordation of the plat as stated in Section 66-165 
(e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 
 

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES: 

 
The Putnam County Planning & Zoning Commission conducted a public hearing on Thursday, March 4, 2021, at 6:30 
P.M. in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia. 

 
PRESENT:  

Chairman James Marshall, Jr. 
Vice-Chairman Tim Pierson 
Member Maurice Hill, Jr. 

Member Martha Farley 
Member John Mitchell  

 
STAFF: 

Ms. Lisa Jackson 
Ms. Courtney Andrews 
Mr. Ben Schmitt 

 
Request by Colia Farley to rezone 4.12 acres from AG to R-2 at 672 Gray Road. [Map 052, Parcel 024001, District 

1]. * Mr. Farley represented this request. His intention is to rezone 4.12 acres of land from agriculture to R-2 to 
place a mobile home on the property. No one spoke in opposition to this request. 
 

Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 4.12 acres from AG to R-2 at 672 Gray Road [Map 052, Parcel 
024001] with the following condition: 1.) This rezoning shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and recordation of 

the plat as stated in Section 66-165 (e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 
 
Motion to approve the request by Colia Farley to rezone 4.12 acres from AG to R-2 at 672 Gray Road. 

[Map 052, Parcel 024001, District 1] made by Member Hill and seconded by Member Farley. 

26



Voting Yea: Chairman Marshall, Vice-Chairman Pierson, Member Farley, Member Hill, and Member 
Mitchell. 

 
 

27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



File Attachments for Item:

7. Request by Steve Parkes and Lorrie Anne Parkes, agent for Ana Castillo and Kristofer J. Shepard, to 

rezone 56.31 acres from RM-3 to AG on Harmony Road [Map 098, Parcel 029, District 3] (staff-P&D)

37



Request by Steve Parkes and Lorrie Anne Parkes, agent for Ana Castillo and Kristofer J. Shepard, to 
rezone 56.31 acres from RM-3 to AG on Harmony Road [Map 098, Parcel 029, District 3].  

 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT-LISA JACKSON STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 
The applicants are requesting to rezone 56.31 acres from RM-3 to AG. The lot is currently under contract with the 
Parkes, and they wish to use the property for agriculture and equestrian use. The applicants stated that the current 

use would not allow them to have horses and they are not interested in multifamily development. Equestrian use is 
only allowed in the Agriculture district. The proposed used is consistent with the allowed uses, as listed in section 

Sec. 66-72. - Uses allowed of the AG zoning district. The Future Land Use Concept Plan shows this property as 
agriculture. It is adjacent to several agriculture, R-2 and R-1R single family lots. This rezoning will not adversely 
impact the use of public facilities or services. Additionally, the proposed will not adversely the existing use value or 

useability of adjacent or nearby properties. 
 

Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 56.31 acres from RM-3 to AG on Harmony Road [Map 
098, Parcel 029]. 
 

38

https://library.municode.com/ga/putnam_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH66ZO_AGDI_S66-72USAL


  

39



 

40



PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
 

The Planning & Zoning Commission’s recommendation is for approval to rezone 56.31 acres from RM-3 to AG on 
Harmony Road [Map 098, Parcel 029]. 

 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES: 

 
The Putnam County Planning & Zoning Commission conducted a public hearing on Thursday, March 4, 2021, at 6:30 

P.M. in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia. 
 
PRESENT:  

Chairman James Marshall, Jr. 
Vice-Chairman Tim Pierson 

Member Maurice Hill, Jr. 
Member Martha Farley 
Member John Mitchell  

 
STAFF: 

Ms. Lisa Jackson 
Ms. Courtney Andrews 

Mr. Ben Schmitt 
 
Request by Steve Parkes and Lorrie Anne Parkes, agent for Ana Castillo and Kristofer J. Shepard to rezone 56.31 

acres from RM-3 to AG on Harmony Road. [Map 098, Parcel 029, District 3]. * Ms. Logan and Ms. Zak represented 
this request. Ms. Logan stated that the property owners are seeking to rezone the land for agriculture and 

equestrian use. They intend to respect the neighboring community and will do board fencing. In addition, there are 
other agricultural lots in the vicinity of the lot in question. No one spoke in opposition to this request. 
 

Ms. Logan noted that the owners do not wish for the zoning to change unless the buyers go through on the 
contract. If the contract does not go through, then the owners would like to keep it residential. Is that an issue? 

 
Ms. Jackson explained that a property is rezoned once approved. Once it is approved and rezoned, the owners 
cannot come back and change it back for 12 months from the approval date. If Ms. Logan believed this is an issue 

with the request. Without knowledge of the contract's duration, if there is time allowed within the contract to 

41



discuss the matter with the owners. If that is a factor, then Ms. Jackson would recommend that Ms. Logan request 
to withdraw without prejudice and come back if this will be binding. If this is no issue, then the requested rezoning 

can move forward. Otherwise, Ms. Jackson would strongly recommend withdrawing without prejudice if this could be 
an issue and discuss it with them. 

 
Ms. Logan noted that the buyers would terminate this deal if this zoning request is not done today. 
 

Ms. Jackson inquired if the contract is under negotiations today? 
 

Ms. Zak responded that financing had been approved; it is contingent on this rezoning getting approval.  
 
Ms. Jackson noted that the final approval would not be until the Board of Commissioners meeting on March 16, 

2021.  
 

Ms. Zak responded that it is fine. Closing for the contract is not until the 31st. 
 
Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 56.31 acres from RM-3 to AG on Harmony Road [Map 098, Parcel 

029]. 
 

Motion to approve the request by Steve Parkes and Lorrie Anne Parkes, agent for Ana Castillo and 
Kristofer J. Shepard to rezone 56.31 acres from RM-3 to AG on Harmony Road. [Map 098, Parcel 029, 

District 3] made by Vice-Chairman Pierson and seconded by Member Mitchell. 
Voting Yea: Chairman Marshall, Vice-Chairman Pierson, Member Farley, Member Hill, and Member 
Mitchell. 

 
 

 

42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



File Attachments for Item:

8. Request by North Georgia Marine LLC, agent for June B. Smith, to rezone 1.1 acres from C-1 to C-2 at 

808 Harmony Road [Map 097, Parcel 066, District 3] (staff-P&D)

61



Request by North Georgia Marine LLC, agent for June B. Smith, to rezone 1.1 acres from C-1 to C-2 at 
808 Harmony Road [Map 097, Parcel 066, District 3].  

 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT-LISA JACKSON STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 
The applicant is requesting to rezone 1.1 acres from C-1 to C-2 in order to establish a boat dealership and service 
center. The subject property will be combined with 2 adjacent properties (map 097 parcel 067, map 097 parcel 

068). The dealership will be placed in the center of the 3 combined parcels, totaling an area of 3.88 acres. All 
existing structures on these parcels will be removed. The proposed boat store/service center will be contained in 

one steel building measuring 100 x 150 feet (15,000 square feet). The interior will consist of an open showroom, 
mezzanine offices, six service bays, and restrooms on both the main and mezzanine levels. The front of the store 
will have space for ten boats to be on display (facing Harmony Road) and a parking lot for the general public. 

Fencing will be erected in according to county ordinances. 
 

The proposed use is consistent with the allowed uses, as listed in section Sec. 66-106. - Uses allowed of C-2 
zoning district which allows outside display and the sell and servicing of boats. The proposed property is located 
along Harmony Road NE, a vital feeder/connector road between Highway 441 and Georgia State Route 44 

(Greensboro Road). The Future Land Use Concept Plan shows this property as residential. However, it is adjacent to 
several C-1 and C-2 properties. While the property could be used as currently zoned, the C-2 zoning would allow for 

outside display. This rezoning will not adversely impact the use of public facilities or services. If approved, the 
proposed development will not affect the existing use value or useability of adjacent or nearby properties. 

 
Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 1.1 acres from C-1 to C-2 at 808 Harmony Road [Map 
097, Parcel 066] with the following condition: 1.) This rezoning shall be conditioned upon the 

resurveying and recordation of the plat as stated in Section 66-165 (e)(3) of Putnam County Code of 
Ordinances. 

 

62

https://library.municode.com/ga/putnam_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH66ZO_CODI_S66-106USAL


  

63



 

64



PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
 

The Planning & Zoning Commission’s recommendation is for approval to rezone 1.1 acres from C-1 to C-2 at 808 
Harmony Road [Map 097, Parcel 066] with the following condition:  

1.) This rezoning shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and recordation of the plat as stated in Section 66-165 
(e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 
 

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES: 

 
The Putnam County Planning & Zoning Commission conducted a public hearing on Thursday, March 4, 2021, at 6:30 
P.M. in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia. 

 
PRESENT:  

Chairman James Marshall, Jr. 
Vice-Chairman Tim Pierson 
Member Maurice Hill, Jr. 

Member Martha Farley 
Member John Mitchell  

 
STAFF: 

Ms. Lisa Jackson 
Ms. Courtney Andrews 
Mr. Ben Schmitt 

 
Mr. Markham represented these requests. He is the owner of North Georgia Marine and Young Harris Watersports, 

and he is seeking to rezone these three pieces of land to combine them and build a boat dealership and service 
center. He will sell and service boats out of this property. A new steel structure will be erected in the center of the 
property. 

 
Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 1.1 acres from C-1 to C-2 at 808 Harmony Road [Map 097, Parcel 

066 with the following condition: 1.) This rezoning shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and recordation of the 
plat as stated in Section 66-165 (e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 
 

65



Motion to approve the request by North Georgia Marine LLC, agent for Jerry O. Smith and June B. Smith 
to rezone 1.1, 1.78, and 1 acres from C-1 to C-2 at 808 and 804 Harmony Road. [Map 097, Parcel 066, 

District 3], [Map 097, Parcel 067, District 3], and [Map 097, Parcel 068, District 3] made by Vice-
Chairman Pierson and seconded by Member Mitchell. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Marshall, Vice-Chairman Pierson, Member Farley, Member       Hill, and Member 
Mitchell. 
 

 
 

66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



File Attachments for Item:

9. Request by North Georgia Marine LLC, agent for Jerry O. Smith, to rezone 1.78 acres from C-1 to C-2 

at 804 Harmony Road [Map 097, Parcel 067, District 3] (staff-P&D)

77



Request by North Georgia Marine LLC, agent for Jerry O. Smith, to rezone 1.78 acres from C-1 to C-2 at 
804 Harmony Road [Map 097, Parcel 067, District 3].  

 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT-LISA JACKSON STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 
The applicant is requesting to rezone 1.78 acres from C-1 to C-2 in order to establish a boat dealership and service 
center. The subject property will be combined with 2 adjacent properties (map 097 parcel 066, map 097 parcel 

068). The dealership will be placed in the center of the 3 combined parcels, totaling an area of 3.88 acres. All 
existing structures on these parcels will be removed. The proposed boat store/service center will contain in one 

steel building measuring 100 x 150 feet (15,000 square feet). The interior will consist of an open showroom, 
mezzanine offices, six service bays, and restrooms on both the main and mezzanine levels. The front of the store 
will have space for ten boats to be on display (facing Harmony Road) and a parking lot for the general public. 

Fencing will be erected in according to county ordinances. 
 

The proposed use is consistent with the allowed uses, as listed in section Sec. 66-106. - Uses allowed of C-2 
zoning district which allows outside display and the sell and servicing of boats. The proposed property is located 
along Harmony Road NE, a vital feeder/connector road between Highway 441 and Georgia State Route 44 

(Greensboro Road). The Future Land Use Concept Plan shows this property as residential. However, it is adjacent to 
several C-1 and C-2 properties. While the property could be used as currently zoned, the C-2 zoning would allow for 

outside display. This rezoning will not adversely impact the use of public facilities or services. If approved, the 
proposed development will not affect the existing use value or useability of adjacent or nearby properties. 

 
Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 1.78 acres from C-1 to C-2 at 804 Harmony Road [Map 
097, Parcel 067] with the following condition: 1.) This rezoning shall be conditioned upon the 

resurveying and recordation of the plat as stated in Section 66-165 (e)(3) of Putnam County Code of 
Ordinances. 

 

78

https://library.municode.com/ga/putnam_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH66ZO_CODI_S66-106USAL


  

79



 

80



PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
 

The Planning & Zoning Commission’s recommendation is for approval to rezone 1.78 acres from C-1 to C-2 at 804 
Harmony Road [Map 097, Parcel 067] with the following condition:  

1.) This rezoning shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and recordation of the plat as stated in Section 66-165 
(e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 

 

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES: 

 
The Putnam County Planning & Zoning Commission conducted a public hearing on Thursday, March 4, 2021, at 6:30 
P.M. in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia. 

 
PRESENT:  

Chairman James Marshall, Jr. 
Vice-Chairman Tim Pierson 
Member Maurice Hill, Jr. 

Member Martha Farley 
Member John Mitchell  

 
STAFF: 

Ms. Lisa Jackson 
Ms. Courtney Andrews 
Mr. Ben Schmitt 

 
Mr. Markham represented these requests. He is the owner of North Georgia Marine and Young Harris Watersports, 

and he is seeking to rezone these three pieces of land to combine them and build a boat dealership and service 
center. He will sell and service boats out of this property. A new steel structure will be erected in the center of the 
property. 

 
Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 1.78 acres from C-1 to C-2 at 804 Harmony Road [Map 097, Parcel 

067 with the following condition: 1.) This rezoning shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and recordation of the 
plat as stated in Section 66-165 (e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 
 

81



Motion to approve the request by North Georgia Marine LLC, agent for Jerry O. Smith and June B. Smith 
to rezone 1.1, 1.78, and 1 acres from C-1 to C-2 at 808 and 804 Harmony Road. [Map 097, Parcel 066, 

District 3], [Map 097, Parcel 067, District 3], and [Map 097, Parcel 068, District 3] made by Vice-
Chairman Pierson and seconded by Member Mitchell. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Marshall, Vice-Chairman Pierson, Member Farley, Member       Hill, and Member 
Mitchell. 
 

 
 

82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



File Attachments for Item:

10. Request by North Georgia Marine LLC, agent for Jerry O. Smith, to rezone 1 acre from C-1 to C-2 at 

804 Harmony Road [Map 097, Parcel 068, District 3] (staff-P&D)

93



Request by North Georgia Marine LLC, agent for Jerry O. Smith, to rezone 1 acre from C-1 to C-2 at 804 
Harmony Road [Map 097, Parcel 068, District 3].  

 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT-LISA JACKSON STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 
The applicant is requesting to rezone 1 acre from C-1 to C-2 in order to establish a boat dealership and service 
center. The subject property will be combined with 2 adjacent properties (map 097 parcel 066, map 097 parcel 

067). The dealership will be placed in the center of the 3 combined parcels, totaling an area of 3.88 acres. All 
existing structures on these parcels will be removed. The proposed boat store/service center will contain in one 

steel building measuring 100 x 150 feet (15,000 square feet). The interior will consist of an open showroom, 
mezzanine offices, six service bays, and restrooms on both the main and mezzanine levels. The front of the store 
will have space for ten boats to be on display (facing Harmony Road) and a parking lot for the general public. 

Fencing will be erected in according to county ordinances. 
 

The proposed use is consistent with the allowed uses, as listed in section Sec. 66-106. - Uses allowed of C-2 
zoning district which allows outside display and the sell and servicing of boats. The proposed property is located 
along Harmony Road NE, a vital feeder/connector road between Highway 441 and Georgia State Route 44 

(Greensboro Road). The Future Land Use Concept Plan shows this property as residential. However, it is adjacent to 
several C-1 and C-2 properties. While the property could be used as currently zoned, the C-2 zoning would allow for 

outside display. This rezoning will not adversely impact the use of public facilities or services. If approved, the 
proposed development will not affect the existing use value or useability of adjacent or nearby properties. 

 
Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 1.00 acres from C-1 to C-2 at 804 Harmony Road [Map 
097, Parcel 068] with the following condition: 1.) This rezoning shall be conditioned upon the 

resurveying and recordation of the plat as stated in Section 66-165 (e)(3) of Putnam County Code of 
Ordinances. 

94

https://library.municode.com/ga/putnam_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH66ZO_CODI_S66-106USAL


  

95



 

96



PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
 

The Planning & Zoning Commission’s recommendation is for approval to rezone 1.00 acres from C-1 to C-2 804 
Harmony Road [Map 097, Parcel 068] with the following condition: 

 1.) This rezoning shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and recordation of the plat as stated in Section 66-165 
(e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 
 

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES: 

 
The Putnam County Planning & Zoning Commission conducted a public hearing on Thursday, March 4, 2021, at 6:30 
P.M. in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia. 

 
PRESENT:  

Chairman James Marshall, Jr. 
Vice-Chairman Tim Pierson 
Member Maurice Hill, Jr. 

Member Martha Farley 
Member John Mitchell  

 
STAFF: 

Ms. Lisa Jackson 
Ms. Courtney Andrews 
Mr. Ben Schmitt 

 
Mr. Markham represented these requests. He is the owner of North Georgia Marine and Young Harris Watersports, 

and he is seeking to rezone these three pieces of land to combine them and build a boat dealership and service 
center. He will sell and service boats out of this property. A new steel structure will be erected in the center of the 
property. 

 
Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 1.00 acres from C-1 to C-2 804 Harmony Road [Map 097, Parcel 

068] with the following condition: 1.) This rezoning shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and recordation of the 
plat as stated in Section 66-165 (e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 
 

97



Motion to approve the request by North Georgia Marine LLC, agent for Jerry O. Smith and June B. Smith 
to rezone 1.1, 1.78, and 1 acres from C-1 to C-2 at 808 and 804 Harmony Road. [Map 097, Parcel 066, 

District 3], [Map 097, Parcel 067, District 3], and [Map 097, Parcel 068, District 3] made by Vice-
Chairman Pierson and seconded by Member Mitchell. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Marshall, Vice-Chairman Pierson, Member Farley, Member       Hill, and Member 
Mitchell. 
 

 
 

98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



File Attachments for Item:

12. Consent Agenda

a. Approval of Minutes - March 5, 2021 Regular Meeting (staff-CC)

b. Approval of Minutes - March 5, 2021 Executive Session (staff-CC)

c. Approval of 2021 Alcohol Licenses (staff-CC)

109



Draft Minutes Page 1 of 4  

March 5, 2021   

 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Minutes 

Friday, March 5, 2021 ◊ 9:00 AM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners met on Friday, March 5, 2021 at approximately 

9:00 AM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, 

Eatonton, Georgia. 

 

PRESENT  

Chairman Billy Webster 

Commissioner Daniel Brown 

Commissioner Bill Sharp 

 

ABSENT 

Commissioner Gary McElhenney 

Commissioner Jeff Wooten 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

County Attorney Adam Nelson 

County Manager Paul Van Haute 

County Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 

Chairman Webster called the meeting to order at approximately 9:00 a.m. 

(Copy of agenda made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

2. Approval of Agenda 

Motion to approve the Agenda. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Brown. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Webster, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 
 

3. Invocation - Dr. Ford G'Segner 

Dr. Ford G'Segner gave the invocation. 

 

4. Pledge of Allegiance (BW) 

Fire Chief McClain led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

110



Draft Minutes Page 2 of 4  

March 5, 2021   

 

5. Special Presentation - Finance Department Awards 

County Manager Van Haute announced some recent GGFOA awards earned by the Finance 

Department.  For the 7th year in a row the Government Finance Officers Association of the 

United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in 

Financial Reporting to Putnam County for its comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for 

the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019.  Also, for the 5th year in a row the Government 

Finance Officers Association announced that Putnam County, Georgia has received GFOA’s 

Award for Outstanding Achievement in Popular Annual Financial Reporting (PAFR award).  In 

addition, for the 3rd year in a row, Finance Director Linda Cook earned a Service Award from 

the Georgia Government Finance Officers Association, this one in recognition of her outstanding 

service as the Annual Conference Chair 2019-2020.  County Manager Van Haute congratulated 

the Finance Department and thanked them for their hard work.  The Board also expressed their 

appreciation to the Finance Department. 

 

Regular Business Meeting 
6. Public Comments 

None 

 

7. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - February 16, 2021 Regular Meeting (staff-CC) 

b. Approval of 2021 Alcohol Licenses (staff-CC) 

c. Authorization for Chairman to sign Resolution for Financing new Ladder Truck (staff-

Fire) 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Brown. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Webster, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 

(Copy of documents made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

 

8. Presentation from Waste Management Company 

Mr. Steve Edwards and Mr. Josh Raugh from Waste Management provided an update on the 

solid waste disposal program.  No action was taken. 

(Copy of presentation made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

 

9. Presentation of FY20 Audit Report 

Mr. Pat Muse from McNair, McLemore, Middlebrooks & Co., LLC presented the FY20 Audit 

Report.  They reported an unmodified or “clean” opinion on the basic financial statements. 

(Copy of presentation made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

 

10. Surplus Fixed Assets for Sale (staff-Finance) 

Motion to surplus the fixed assets for sale as listed in the meeting package. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Brown. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Webster, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 

(Copy of asset list made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

111



Draft Minutes Page 3 of 4  

March 5, 2021   

 

 

Reports/Announcements 
11. County Manager Report 

County Manager Van Haute again congratulated the Finance Department for their incredible 

work.  He also announced there may be some Sheriff's vehicles to be surplused at the next 

meeting. 

 

12. County Attorney Report 

No report. 

 

13. Commissioner Announcements 

Commissioner McElhenney: absent 

 

Commissioner Brown: none 

 

Commissioner Sharp: none 

 

Commissioner Wooten: absent 

 

Chairman Webster: none 

 

Executive Session 
14. Enter Executive Session as allowed by O.C.G.A. 50-14-4 for Personnel, Litigation, or Real 

Estate 

Motion to enter Executive Session as allowed by O.C.G.A. 50-14-4 for Litigation and Real 

Estate. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Brown. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Webster, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 

 

 

Meeting closed at approximately 9:42 a.m. 

 

 

15. Reopen meeting and execute Affidavit concerning the subject matter of the closed portion of 

the meeting 

Motion to reopen the meeting and authorize the Chairman to sign the Affidavit concerning 

the subject matter of the closed portion of the meeting. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Brown. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Webster, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 

(Copy of affidavit made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

 

Meeting reconvened at approximately 10:01 a.m. 

 

 

 

112



Draft Minutes Page 4 of 4  

March 5, 2021   

 

16. Action, if any, resulting from the Executive Session 

No action was taken. 

 

Closing 
17. Adjournment 

Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Brown. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Webster, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 

 

 

Meeting adjourned at approximately 10:02 a.m. 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Billy Webster 

County Clerk       Chairman 

113



PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

Office of the County Clerk 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

706-485-5826 (main office) ◊ 706-485-1877 (direct line) ◊ 706-923-2345 (fax) 

lbutterworth@putnamcountyga.us ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 

 

 

 

 

The draft minutes of the March 5, 2021 Executive Session 

are available for Commissioner review in the Clerk’s 

office. 
 

114

mailto:lbutterworth@putnamcountyga.us
http://www.putnamcountyga.us/


PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

Office of the County Clerk 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

706-485-5826 (main office) ◊ 706-485-1877 (direct line) ◊ 706-923-2345 (fax) 

lbutterworth@putnamcountyga.us ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

Approval of 2021 Alcohol Licenses 

 
The following alcohol license applications (which are available for review in 
the County Clerk’s office) have been approved by the Sheriff, Fire Marshal 

and/or Building Inspector, and Tax Commissioner and are ready for BOC 
approval: 
 

Individual 

Name 

Business Name Address License Type 

Greg Scoggins Kwik Stop #3 947 Gray Road 
Retail Package: Malt Beverages 

and Wine 

Shannon 

Thompson 
Brush Creek LLC 

1001C Lake 

Oconee Parkway 

Retail Package: Malt Beverages 

and Wine and Distilled Spirits 

 
 

115

mailto:lbutterworth@putnamcountyga.us
http://www.putnamcountyga.us/


File Attachments for Item:

14. Discussion and possible action on Anchors Marina Release and Settlement Agreement (BW)

116



117



118



119



120



121



122



File Attachments for Item:

15. Request by James H. Jenkins, Jr. for Road Acceptance of Greenway Drive (staff-CC-P&D-PW)

123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

Sec. 28-66. - Required improvements.  

The requirements of this section shall apply to every major subdivision and site development and 
shall be planned for and provided by the developer by installation and/or payment prior to the approval of 
the final plat. Where indicated by an asterisk (*), the requirement is not necessarily applicable to a site 
development as shall be determined by the director in consultation with the developer.  

(a)  * Street names. All streets shall be named and marked with MUTCD signs. Street names shall 
have the approval of the director and shall not duplicate, nor closely approximate phonetically or 
visually, the name of any other street in the county. A street that is in alignment with an existing 
street shall continue the name of the existing street.  

(b)  Streets. All streets, whether public, private or curb cuts, shall be designed, constructed and 
paved in accordance with the standards set forth in this chapter.  

(1)  No street or drainage structure shall be accepted by the county until it shall have been in 
public use for two years (two-year warranty period) and all repairs required by the county 
have been completed to the satisfaction of the county.  

(2)  To initiate the two-year warranty period the county must conduct an inspection of all 
drainage structures, the road, grading, grassing, and the use of best management 
practices for soil and erosion control. The developer/owner must post a surety or cash 
bond per section 28-82 of this chapter.  

(3)  It is the responsibility of the developer to maintain all streets until they are accepted by the 
county, and issue a surety bond to the county, to provide for such maintenance and repair, 
should the developer not be able to conduct the required repairs, as provided by this 
chapter.  

(4)  The developer shall install all necessary traffic control signs, signals, and street name 
signs as required by the county or GDOT at its sole cost. In addition, the subdivider shall 
provide suitable ground cover, such as grass, on all unpaved areas of street right-of-way or 
other public areas. All grassing shall be done to DOT specifications.  

(5)  If at the end of the two-year warranty period the road or drainage structures are not in 
good maintenance, the county will require the developer/owner to make such repairs to 
bring the road or drainage structures into good maintenance. If after 60 days notice from 
the county the developer/owner has not made the required repairs, the county may seek to 
call the bond or other surety.  

 

Sec. 28-87. - Acceptance of previously constructed private roads.  

In accordance with this chapter, the board of commissioners may accept for maintenance any 
previously constructed private roads within the boundaries of the county. Upon dedication by the property 
owners of the private roads, the board of commissioners shall have the sole discretion to accept the same 
for maintenance on condition that:  

(1)  The roads were constructed in accordance with the established standards of the county, meet 
all applicable regulations concerning roads contained in this chapter and were completed prior 
to January 1, 2005;  

(2)  The roads have been surveyed by a licensed land surveyor who has prepared an as-built 
survey as described in section 28-80, which was either previously submitted to and approved by 
the director or planning department in accordance with the preliminary and final plat approval 
requirements codified at the time of construction or which has been recently prepared and 
submitted to the director in accordance with the preliminary and final plat application process 
currently established; and  

132



PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

(3)  All independent and county inspections requirements have been satisfied, including completion 
of core sample tests by an approved and accredited engineering firm that is a member of the 
American Society for Testing and Materials on areas of the road designated by the county and 
performed no greater than 90 days prior to the request for acceptance, which indicate the roads 
are equal to the current constructed road standards as established by the county or within an 
acceptable deviation as recommended by the director and the county inspector.  

Further, upon satisfaction of these conditions, the board of commissioners may waive the bonding 
requirements described in section 28-82.  

133



File Attachments for Item:

17. Authorization for Chairman to sign Technical Assistance Letter to the Middle Georgia Regional 

Commission regarding Redistricting (staff-CM)

134



 

March 16, 2021 
 
 
 
Ms. Laura Mathis 
Executive Director 
Middle Georgia Regional Commission 
175 Emery Highway, Suite C 
Macon, GA 31217 
 
Dear Ms. Mathis: 
 
Putnam County requests technical assistance with redistricting.  Please contact Paul Van Haute, 

County Manager, regarding this application. 

 
Thank you for your assistance in this matter. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Billy Webster, Chairman 
Putnam County Board of Commissioners 
 
 

135



File Attachments for Item:

18. Authorization for Chairman to sign Technical Assistance Letter to the Middle Georgia Regional 

Commission regarding a Flow Chart Update for Commercial Development (staff-CM)

136



 

March 16, 2021 
 
 
 
Ms. Laura Mathis 
Executive Director 
Middle Georgia Regional Commission 
175 Emery Highway, Suite C 
Macon, GA 31217 
 
Dear Ms. Mathis: 
 
Putnam County requests technical assistance for the Planning & Development Department for a 

commercial development flow chart update.  Please contact Lisa Jackson, Planning & 

Development Director, regarding this application. 

 
Thank you for your assistance in this matter. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Billy Webster, Chairman 
Putnam County Board of Commissioners 
 
 

137



File Attachments for Item:

19. Appointment to the Central Georgia Joint Development Authority (staff-CC)

138



Applicants for Central Georgia Joint Development Authority                                                                 3/9/2021

NAME ADDRESS DISTRICT BACKGROUND

APPLICATION 

DATE

Kevin Beasley 191 Alexander Lakes Dr 2

Construction/Estimation; BA in 

History; MA in Teaching; 

Specialist in Education; Doctorate 

in Ed Leadership; Teacher for 8 

years 2/16/2021

There is one vacancy:

Trevor Addison Term Expires 7/17/21

Need one person to fill the unexpired portion of Mr. Addison's term + full 4 year term

Page 1 of 1

139



PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

706-485-5826 

www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

 

N O T I C E 
 

 
 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners is seeking individuals interested 
in serving on the Central Georgia Joint Development Authority 

(CGJDA).  The CGJDA was created to promote the general welfare and 
economic prosperity of the Middle Georgia Region.  CGJDA has provided 

assistance to many economic development efforts throughout its service 

region.  The candidates should be dedicated, fair minded, not self-serving, 
and willing to devote the time necessary for the position.  

 
There is one vacancy on the CGJDA for Post 1.  This will be to fill an 

unexpired term until July 17, 2021 and an additional full term of four years.  
The CGJDA meets on the second Wednesday of the last month of each 

quarter of the year at 4:30 p.m.  The meetings are held at the Middle 
Georgia Regional Commission, 175 Emery Highway, Suite C, Macon, Georgia 

31217. 
 

Interested persons should submit an application to the Putnam County 
Board of Commissioners, 117 Putnam Drive, Suite A, Eatonton, Georgia 

31024.  Applications will be accepted until the position is filled.  The board 
application form can be found on the county website at 

www.putnamcountyga.us (in the “How Do I…” or “Forms & Documents” 

sections) or by calling 706-485-5826. 
 

 
01/14/2021 & 01/21/2021 

 
 

140

http://www.putnamcountyga.us/


4 year terms                                           March 9, 2021 

4 members (2 PDA members selected by PDA; 2 selected by BOC and BOC must confirm PDA selections) 

Copy to Economic Development Director and notify MGRC 

 

CENTRAL GEORGIA JOINT DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

 

 

 

 

MEMBER          POST    APPOINTED               TERM EXPIRES 

 

BOC Appointments 

 

Trevor Addison   RESIGNED     1   07/18/2017   07/17/2021 

131 Cypress Lane 

Eatonton, GA  31024 

 

Bill W. Sharp*       2   04/16/2019   07/17/2021 

103 Bulloch Hall Drive 

Eatonton, GA  31024 

 

PDA Appointments 

 

Patty Burns        3   04/16/2019   04/15/2023 

120 Nina Drive 

Eatonton, GA  31024 

 

Walter C. Rocker, III       4   04/16/2019   04/15/2023 

409 N. Madison Avenue 

Eatonton, GA  31024 

 

 

 

 

*filling the unexpired term of Jennifer Rainey 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Putnam County’s Central Georgia Joint Development Authority 

Appointment Procedures 
 

In accordance with the bylaws of the Central Georgia Joint Development Authority (CGJDA), the Putnam 

County Board of Commissioners shall appoint four members to serve on the board of the CGJDA. During the 

initial appointment, the board will appoint two members to serve a two-year term and two members to 

serve a four-year term. Thereafter, the members shall be appointed for terms of four years. 

Members shall be selected in the following manner: 
(a) Two appointees shall be selected by the Putnam Development Authority from among the members 

141



4 year terms                                           March 9, 2021 

4 members (2 PDA members selected by PDA; 2 selected by BOC and BOC must confirm PDA selections) 

Copy to Economic Development Director and notify MGRC 

of the Putnam Development Authority; these shall serve the initial two-year terms. 
(b) The Putnam County Board of Commissioners shall confirm the appointees of the Putnam 

Development Authority 
(c) The Putnam County Board of Commissioners shall also select two appointees under the procedures 

found in Section 2-53. Appointment procedures of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 

 
 

• Putnam County Code of Ordinances - Sec. 2-53. - Appointment procedures. 

 
Appointments to all boards, authorities, and commissions shall be conducted in accordance with the 

procedures contained in this section. 
 

(a) The county clerk shall cause to be published in the county's legal organ an advertisement 
announcing any vacancies at least 14 days prior to any appointment. 

(b) Following the appropriate advertising period, the county clerk, or designee, shall prepare and 
provide to the commission, a spreadsheet format list of all qualified candidates whose applications 
were received timely by the county clerk. 

(c) Immediately after the agenda item has been called, the clerk will verbally announce the qualified 
candidates and present their resume. A visually projected image of the spreadsheet prepared in 
subsection (b) above may be substituted. 

(d) For each vacant position, except as outlined in chapter 14-4(b) and 66-150(b), each commissioner 
may nominate anyone on the qualified list. Each nomination must receive a second to be 
considered for a later vote. While it is desirable to have each district represented on all county 
boards, authorities, and commissions as well as to have as much representation across the entire 
county and its constituents as possible, the greater need is to have interested, qualified, and 
responsible applicants who will provide the greatest contribution to Putnam County in carrying out 
the necessary functions of these boards, authorities, and commissions. All candidates who have 
received a nomination and a second can be discussed by the commissioners. Following discussion, a 
roll call vote will be taken. The proper response, to the call for a vote, is the name of the preferred 
candidate. The person receiving the majority vote of the commissioners will be the candidate 
selected. In those cases where there is not a tie and no one has received a majority vote, a second 
round of voting may be directed by the chairman. 

(e) No member of any board, authority, or commission shall be an employee of Putnam County as 
defined in Section I.D. of the Putnam County Personnel Manual. 

(Amend. of 9-15-2009; Amend. of 11-6-2009(1); Amend. of 11-30-2009(1); Amend. of 10-18-2011(1); Amend. 
of 3-1-2013) 

 

142



143



144



File Attachments for Item:

20. Appointment to the Putnam Development Authority (staff-CC)

145



Applicants for Putnam Development Authority                                                                 3/9/2021

NAME ADDRESS DISTRICT BACKGROUND
APPLICATION 

DATE

Kevin Beasley

191 Alexander Lakes 

Dr 2

Construction/Estimation; BA 

in History; MA in Teaching; 

Specialist in Education; 

Doctorate in Ed Leadership; 

Teacher for 8 years 2/16/2021

Brice Doolittle 111 Dogwood Lane 2

Project Manager of ESG-

EPWSA; Bachelors of 

Science 3/8/2021

Ernie Pollitzer

134 Dogwood Drive 

SE 4

Consultant, Engineer, 

Bachelor of Science-

Chemical Engineering, 

Master of Science Civil 

Engineering 3/9/2021

There is one vacancy:

Eugene Smith Term Expires 6/1/22 Resigned

Need one person to fill the unexpired portion of Mr. Smith's term

Page 1 of 1

146



PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

706-485-5826 

www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

 

N O T I C E 

 
 

 
The Putnam County Board of Commissioners is seeking individuals interested 

in serving on the Putnam Development Authority.  This appointment will 
fill an unexpired term ending June 1, 2022.  The candidates should be 

dedicated, fair minded, not self-serving and willing to devote the time 
necessary for the position.  Successful candidate must attend State 

Mandated training before the end of the first year of appointment.   

 
Interested persons should submit an application to the Putnam County Board 

of Commissioners, 117 Putnam Drive, Suite A, Eatonton, Georgia 31024.  
Applications will be accepted until the position is filled.  The board application 

form can be found on the county website at www.putnamcountyga.us (in the 
“How Do I?” section) or by calling 706-485-5826. 

 
 

 
10/29/2020 & 11/05/2020 

 
 

 

147

http://www.putnamcountyga.us/


5 year terms           

5 members (local development) Appointed by BOC                   

Copy to Economic Development Director                                                                                          Last Updated 3/9/2021 

 

PUTNAM DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

 

 

 

MEMBER                                     TERM EXPIRES 

 

John Wojtas***, 2020 Assistant Secretary/Treasurer   05/01/2021 

101 Horseshoe Court 

Eatonton, GA  31024 

 

Patty Burns, 2020 Secretary/Treasurer      05/01/2025 

120 Nina Drive 

Eatonton, GA  31024   

 

Walter C. Rocker, III**, 2020 Chairman     05/01/2023 

409 N. Madison Avenue 

Eatonton, GA  31024 

 

Eugene Smith, 2020 Vice Chairman  RESIGNED 10/20/2020 06/01/2022 

108 Bear Creek Road 

Eatonton, GA  31024 

 

Mylle Mangum*        05/01/2023 

416 North Jefferson Avenue 

Eatonton, GA  31024 

 

 

*Filling the unexpired term of Ed Waggoner 

**Filling the unexpired term of Bill Sharp 

***Filling the unexpired term of Joshua Daniel 

 
 

148



149



150



151



152



File Attachments for Item:

21. Appointments to the Board of Assessors (staff-CC)

153



Applicants for Board of Assessors                                                                  3/12/2021

NAME ADDRESS DISTRICT

AT 

LEAST 

AGE 21 

HIGH SCHOOL 

DIPLOMA OR 

EQUIVALENT

DATE 

APPLICATION 

RECEIVED

Kevin Beasley 191 Alexander Lakes Dr 2 yes yes 2/16/2021

Evan Reese 122 S. Leisure Lane 4 yes yes 2/24/2021

John Chaklos Jr. 120 South Leisure Lane 4 yes yes 2/26/2021

Virginia M. Daley 201 E. Magnolia Street 2 yes yes 3/9/2021

There are three vacancies:

John Chaklos Jr. Term Expired 2/3/21

Evan Reese Term Expired 2/3/21

Ronald M. Gilpin Term Expires 7/6/22 Resigned

Need one person to fill Mr. Chaklos' seat for a full four year term

Need one person to fill Mr. Reese's seat for a full four year term

Need one person to fill the unexpired portion of Mr. Gilpin's term

Page 1 of 1

154



PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

706-485-5826 

www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

 

N O T I C E 

 
 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners is seeking interested Putnam 
County residents to serve on the Board of Assessors.  Persons eligible to 

serve on the Board of Assessors must be at least 21 years of age and have a 
valid high school diploma or its equivalent.  The successful candidates must 

complete 80 hours of training and pass the assessor examination during the 
first year of appointment.  Additionally, the successful applicants must 

complete 40 hours of continuing education every two years. 

 
This board is responsible for determining taxability, value and equalization of 

all assessments within the county.  The County Board of Tax Assessors notifies 
taxpayers when changes are made to the value of the property; receives and 

reviews all appeals filed; and insures that the appeal process proceeds 
properly.  In addition, they approve all exemptions claimed by the taxpayer.  

Meetings of the Board of Assessors are usually held once per month on a 
weekday between the hours of 2:00 PM and 6:00 PM.  During appeal time, 

meetings can increase to at least three or four times per month.  
Compensation is $50.00 per board meeting.     

 
Interested persons should submit an application to the Putnam County Board 

of Commissioners, 117 Putnam Drive, Suite A, Eatonton, Georgia 31024. 
Applications will be accepted until the positions are filled.  The board 

application form can be found on the county website at 

www.putnamcountyga.us (in the “How Do I” section) or by calling 706-485-
5826. 

 
 

01/21/2021 & 01/28/2021 
 

 

 

155

http://www.putnamcountyga.us/


4 year terms (effective 3/97)      Last Updated 3/9/2021 

Appointed by BOC 

Need to be sworn in by Clerk of Court 

Need to provide information to HR 

Prepare Resolution for DOR 

 BOARD OF ASSESSORS 

 

 

MEMBER           TERM BEGINS                        TERM EXPIRES 

 

John Chaklos Jr.    02/03/17    02/03/21 

120 S. Leisure Lane 

Milledgeville, GA  31061 

 

John L. Richter*    03/06/20    11/17/21 

142 Tanglewood Road SW 

Eatonton, GA  31024 

 

Evan Reese**      03/20/18     02/03/21 

122 S. Leisure Lane 

Milledgeville, GA  31061 

 

Ronald M. Gilpin, Chair 2020  07/06/18    07/06/22 

109 Rock Lake Drive   RESIGNED 

Eatonton, GA  31024 

 

Shelby J. Storey    03/20/20    03/20/24 

169 Cedar Cove Drive 

Buckhead, GA  30625 

 

 

*to fill the unexpired term of Donald Cottrell 

**to fill the unexpired term of Eugene Smith  

 
 

156



157



158



159



160



PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
706-485-5826 ◊ 706-923-2345 fax 

www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

APPLICATION FOR BOARDS, COMMITTEES, & AUTHORITIES 
 

Name: _________________________________  Home Phone: ___________________________ 

Address: _______________________________  Work Phone: ___________________________ 

________________________________________ Cell Phone: _________________ 

Occupation: _____________________________ E-mail: __________________ 

 
I would like to apply for appointment to the following Board, Committee, or Authority: 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Which district do you live in?       1    2    3    4 
 
Briefly explain your educational background ________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Are you an owner or officer in any business or corporation?    Yes    No 
 
If yes, please list the name and activity of the business or corporation: ____________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Please explain any previous experience with State or Local Government: __________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Briefly explain why you seek this appointment: ______________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
If appointed, I agree to serve. 
 
_________________________________________  ________________________________ 
Signature       Application Date 
 
*This application should be submitted to the Putnam County Board of Commissioners.  Any additional 
information may be included on a separate page. 

Virginia M Daley 706-485-3564

Eationton, Ga

201 E. Magnolia St.

Retired Real Estate Appraiser

Board of Assessors

✔

Real Estate Broker (inactive)

High School Diploma, Certified Real Estate Appraiser and

✔

Real Estate Appraiser for the

many diverse types of property.  Fairness and equal assessments for same type properties is very

important. I feel my skills and abilities will be an asset to the Board and community.

Putnam County is a growing county in population and

March 9, 2021

City of Madison Wisconsin responsible for 10,000  properties

161



File Attachments for Item:

22. Recommendations for Appointment to the Hospital Authority - Post 7 (staff-CC)

162



Applicants for Hospital Authority of Putnam County                                                                 3/9/2021

NAME ADDRESS POST OCCUPATION EDUCATION GOV'T EXPERIENCE
APPLICATION 

DATE

William Cooper 

Rainey, Jr. 125 Pearl Moon Drive 7

VP of Rossee 

Oil Co., Inc.

Gatewood Schools; 

Brandon Hall in 

Dunwoody; CGTC-EMT 

Certificate; GPSTC-

Coroner

Putnam County Coroner; 

Eatonton DDA 11/10/2020

David J. Owens 116 Rock Springs Road 7 Retired

Masters in Healthcare 

Admin; BS in Public 

Health

Worked in four not-for-profit 

hospitals that were county 

related 11/20/2020

Robert D. Betzel 408 N. Madison Avenue 7 Dentist

Vanderbilt Univ-BA in 

Biology; Emory School of 

Dentistry-DDS

Currently serving on Hospital 

Authority 1/11/2021

Nancy Chaklos 120 S. Leisure Lane 7 RN

40+ years in healthcare 

industry None 1/29/2021

There is one vacancy:

Robert Betzel Term Expired 2/28/21

Need three names to submit to Hospital Authority

Page 1 of 1

163



PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

706-485-5826 

www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

 

NOTICE 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners is seeking Putnam County 
residents interested in serving on the Hospital Authority of Putnam 

County.  There are two vacant positions, Posts 4 and 7.   
 

Interested persons should submit an application to the Putnam County 
Board of Commissioners, 117 Putnam Drive, Suite A, Eatonton, Georgia 

31024. Applications will be accepted until the positions are filled.  The board 

application form can be found on the county website at 
www.putnamcountyga.us (in the “How Do I”) section or by calling the above 

number. 
 

 
01/14/2021 & 01/21/2021 

 
 

164

http://www.putnamcountyga.us/


4 year terms                                                                        Last Updated 3/9/2021 

Recommended by BOC and appointed by Hospital Authority 

HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 

 

MEMBER  TERM EXPIRES 

 

Mrs. Glenda Ridley                                         Post 1 2/28/2023 

428 Milledgeville Road 

Eatonton, GA  31024 

 

Jerry Gregory, Jr. – Chairman                         Post 2 2/28/2023 

P. O. Box 3355 

Eatonton, GA  31024 

 

Jeff Hodge                                                       Post 3 2/28/2025 

282 W. River Bend Drive 

Eatonton, GA  31024 

 

Tom Thompson                                               Post 4 2/28/2025 

103 Greensboro Road 

Eatonton, GA  31024 

 

Tony Franklin                                                 Post 5 2/28/2023 

187 Lower Harmony Road 

Eatonton, GA 31024 

 

Judy Fain                                                         Post 6 2/28/2023 

536 River Lake Drive 

Eatonton, GA  31024 

  

Robert D. Betzel, D.D.S.                                Post 7 2/28/2021 

408 N. Madison Avenue 

Eatonton, GA  31024 

 

Daniel Brown     BOC Liaison   12/31/2024 

165



166



167



168



169



File Attachments for Item:

23. Discussion and possible action regarding TSPLOST and authorization for County Manager to move 

ahead with a schedule (BW)

170



A RESOLUTION TO CALL FOR A REFERENDUM TO BE SUBMITTED TO THE 
ELECTORS OF PUTNAM COUNTY IMPOSING A SPECIAL DISTRICT MASS 

TRANSPORTATION SALES AND USE TAX 

WHEREAS, 0.C.G.A. § 48-8-261, et. seq., grants to the Putnam County Board of 
Commissioners ("Board") the power to impose for a limited period of time within the special 
district corresponding to and being conterminous with the geographical boundaries of Putnam 
County a transportation special purpose local option sales and use tax; 

WHEREAS, the Board and the City Council of Eatonton ("Eatonton") met on July 11, 
2017 to discuss possible projects for inclusion in the referendum and the rate of tax; and 

WHEREAS, Putnam County desires to submit the proposed list of transportation 
purposes and the question of whether the tax should be approved to the electors of the special 
district in the next scheduled election; 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Board hereby request the election 
superintendent of Putnam County submit the question of the imposition of a special district mass 
transportation sales and use tax at the rate of 1% to the voters within the special district to raise a 
maximum amount of net proceeds in the amount of $15,000,000 over the next five calendar 
years for the specific transportation purposes listed in Exhibit A to the Intergovernmental 
Agreement entered into by Putnam County and Eatonton on August 21, 2017. The ballot 
question shall read as follows: 

Shall a special 1% sales and use tax be imposed in the special district consisting 
of Putnam County for a period of time not to exceed 5 years and for the raising of 
not more than an estimated amount of $15 Million for transportation purposes? 

( ) Yes 
( ) No 

The election superintendent shall issue the call and conduct the election in the manner authorized 
by general law. The superintendent shall canvass the returns, declare the result of the election, 
and certify the result to the Secretary of State and to the Commissioner of the Department of 
Revenue. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this resolution has been duly adopted by the governing authority of 
Putnam County, Georgia on the 	day of  	5jt   ,2on . 

Chairma Stephe jHersey 

171



Li t4A-'   day of   Pt---s--.)  	, 201 -)  . 
In witness whereof, I hereunto set my hand and affix the seal of Putnam County, this 

CERTIFICATION 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of an original resolution 
adopted by the Putnam County Board of Commissioners on the  Li'   day of   A --s+,  201 -7  . 

Co(t17;ty Clerk 
Lynn Butterworth 

172


	Top
	Item #5.	2021-03-16 BOC Rezoning-Kimble
	Kimble Info
	KimbleRezone_Redacted
	Kimble033029LV
	Kimble033029ZOOM

	Item #6.	2021-03-16 BOC Rezoning-Farley
	Farley Info
	FarleyRezone_Redacted
	Farley052024001LV
	Farley052024001ZOOM

	Item #7.	2021-03-16 BOC Rezoning-Parkes
	Parkes Info
	ParkesRezone_Redacted
	Parkes098029LV
	Parkes098029ZOOM

	Item #8.	2021-03-16 BOC Rezoning-N GA Marine
	North GA Marine1 Info
	NGAMarine1097066Rezone_Redacted
	NGAMarine1097066LV
	NGAMarine1097066ZOOM

	Item #9.	2021-03-16 BOC Rezoning-N GA Marine2
	North GA Marine2 Info
	NGAMarine2097067Rezone_Redacted
	NGAMarine2097067LV
	NGAMarine2097067ZOOM

	Item #10.	2021-03-16 BOC Rezoning-N GA Marine3
	North GA Marine3 Info
	NGAMarine3097068Rezone_Redacted
	NGAMarine3097068LV
	NGAMarine3097068ZOOM

	Item #12.	2021-03-16 BOC Consent Agenda
	DRAFT 03-05-21 BOC Minutes
	Executive Session Minutes Agenda Item Template
	Agenda Item for Alcohol Licenses

	Item #14.	2021-03-16 BOC Anchors Marina Settlement
	Release and Settlement Agreement-Anchors Marina 012221

	Item #15.	2021-03-16 BOC Greenway Drive
	Greenway Drive 030121 Application_Redacted
	Greenway Drive Checklist
	Greenway Drive Plat
	Greenway Drive Bond
	Road Acceptance Resolution
	Road Acceptance Exerpt from Code of Ordinances

	Item #17.	2021-03-16 BOC TA Letter-Redistricting
	TA Letter for Redistricting

	Item #18.	2021-03-16 BOC TA Letter-Flow Chart
	TA Letter for Flow Chart Update

	Item #19.	2021-03-16 BOC CGJDC Appt
	CGJDA Chart of Applicants
	Central Georgia Joint Development Authority Ad-unexpired term and regular term
	Central Georgia Joint Development Authority Members
	CGJDA-Trevor Addison Resignation Letter_Redacted
	CGJDA-Kevin Beasley Application_Redacted

	Item #20.	2021-03-16 BOC PDA Appt
	PDA-Chart of Applicants
	Putnam Development Authority Ad-Unexpired Term
	Putnam Development Authority Members
	PDA-Gene Smith Resignation Letter_Redacted
	PDA-Kevin Beasley Application_Redacted
	PDA-Brice Doolittle Application_Redacted
	PDA-Ernie Pollitzer Application2_Redacted

	Item #21.	2021-03-16 BOC Bd of Assessors Appt
	BOA Chart of Applicants
	Board of Assessors Ad-Regular Term
	Board of Assessors Members
	BOA-Ron Gilpin Resignation Letter_Redacted
	BOA-Kevin Beasley Application_Redacted
	BOA-Evan Reese Application_Redacted
	BOA-John Chaklos Application_Redacted
	BOA-Virginia Daley Application_Redacted

	Item #22.	2021-03-16 BOC Hospital Authority
	Hospital Authority Chart of Applicants
	Hospital Authority Ad-regular term
	Hospital Authority Board Members
	Hospital Authority-Rainey_Redacted
	Hospital Authority-Owens_Redacted
	Hospital Authority-Betzel_Redacted
	Hospital Authority-Chaklos_Redacted

	Item #23.	2021-03-16 BOC TSPLOST
	2017-08-04 Call for Referendum Imposing Special District Mass Transportation Sales and Use Tax

	Bottom

